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IN MEMORIAM 

Robert A. Warner 

Robert A. Warner, Professor Emeritus of 
Music and former director of the Stearns col­
lection at the University of Michigan at Ann 
Arbor died February 10, 1986. A long-standing 
member of AMIS, he served a term on the 
Board of Governors, 1982-85. His memory was 
honored at the May 10 AMIS membership 
meeting with a tribute delivered by William E. 
Hettrick, followed by a moment of silence. 

A native of Parkersburg, Iowa, Warner at­
tended Northern Iowa University and the 
Eastman School of Music, before completing 
his doctoral studies in musicology at the 
University of Michigan in 1951. He joined the 
University of Michigan faculty in 1956, and 
later spent six years as Associate Dean in 
charge of graduate studies in the School of 
Music. He retired in January 1980. 

An authority on English chamber music of 
the 17th century, Warner published editions 
and articles about the works of John Jenkins. 
With Friedrich von Huene, he contributed ar­
ticles about recorders in the Stearns collection 
for The Galpin Society Journal, and wrote 
numerous articles about musical instruments 
for encyclopedias. His retirement plans includ­
ed writing a history of the Stearns collection, 
a project forestalled by illness. 

Under Warner's direction, the Stearns col­
lection gained in physical condition, com­
plete!1ess, visibility, and prestige. Many ac­
quisitions were made, including the purchase 
of a Barak Norman viola da gamba; among the 
important restorations was an 18th-century 
Italian harpsichord. 

Bob will be deeply missed by his many 
AMIS friends and colleagues. 

MUSEUM OF FINE ARTS 
ACQUIRES BOOKS, MUSIC 

The Museum of Fine Arts in Boston, 
Massachusetts, in addition to the musical in­
struments acquired between 1972 and June 30, 
1984 (listed in the February 1986 AMIS 
Newsletter, pp. 4-7), has also acquired a number 
of important printed materials, including 
books, music, and tutors, which are available 
for research, according to D. Samuel Quigley, 
Keeper of Musical Instruments. 
1975.325. Music Tutor for the Violin by Gemi­
niani, published by Smart, London, ca. 1792. 
1977.84. "Ariette, e Canzonette per Piano 

Forte," Celestine Bartolini, copied in Naples, 
19th century. 
1977.85. Selected manuscripts from Handel, 
copied by Smith and others, London, ca. 1717; 
after 1729; 1730-32; after 1765. 
1977.86. "Sonate da Cimbalo," Galuppi, 
Pescetti, Iozzi, Francesco Alberti, and Casali, 
unknown copyist. 
1977.87. Essay on musical expression, Avison, 
printed for C. Davis, London, 1753. 
1977.88. "God Save the King Variations," J. 
C. Bach, printed for G. Shade, London. 
1977.89. Musique Mathematique by Euler, 
Paris, 1865. 
1977.90.42 Suits of Lessons for the Harp­
sichord, Vol. I, by Domenico Scarlatti, printed 
for Johnson, London, 1748 (?). 
1977.91. A Musical Dictionary . .. by 
Grassineau, printed for Wilcox, London, 1740. 
1977.92. "Harmonica," Encyclopedia Blittan­
ica, first edition, 1796. 
1977.93. "Music," Encyclopedia Britannica, 
fourth edition, 1810. 
1977.94. Die Lehre von den Tonempfindungen 
as Physiologische grundlage fu;' die TheOlie de'r 
Musik, fifth edition by Helmholz, Braunsweig, 
Germany, 1896. 
1977.95. L'A77'ivee du Piano Forte a MI'. Le 
Comte D'AffIYo .. , Oeuvre II, by Albanese, 
Paris, 1771. 
1977.96a&b. La Scuola Della Musica by Ger­
vasoni, two volumes, Piacenza, Italy, 1800. 
1977.97. Music Made Easy To Every Capaci­
ty . .. , Ayre & Moore, London, 1778. 
1977.98. Neue Bibliothek del' Schonen 
Wissenschaften und del' Freien Kunst, XIII 
Bd., Leipzig, 1772. 
1977.99. The New Musical and Vocal Cabinet 
by Kelly, London, 1820. 
1977.100. "Principj di Musica," Panerai, 
Florence. 
1977.101. "Pianos, Harpes, et. orgues" by 
Erard et Cie, Les Grandes Usines, Revue 
Peliodique, Juin 1887. 
1977.102. Historische-Technische 
Beschreibung del' Musicalischen Instrumente 
by Schneider, Leipzig, 1834. 
1977.103. Halmonics, 01' the Philosophy of 
Musical Sounds by Smith, second edition, for 
T. & J. Merrill, London, 1759. 
1977.104. A Musical Grammar and Dictionary 
by Tans'ur, Stokesley, England, 1819. 
1977.105. Traitte des Languettes Imperialles 
Pour La Perfection du Clavecin by Rousseliere, 
Paris, 1679. 
1978.28. Decorative box for sheet music. 
1978.29-34. Six volumes of 19th-century sheet 
music. 
1980.247a-d. String quartet music part books, 
including works by Haydn, J. C. Bach, Boc­
cherini, and others, 18th century. 
1980.248b. Selection for Phonoharp by Bat­
chelder, published by Oliver Green, 1892. 
1980.646. Watercolor of a piano in the shape 
of a bentside spinet by James Penniman, 
Boston, ca. 1830. 

NEWS OF MEMBERS 
Robert Washburn, recently-retired Dean of 

the Crane School of Music at SUNY at 
Potsdam, has been appointed Senior Fellow in 
Music at that institution. This past spring he 
was awarded a Fulbright Research Grant to do 
field study of the popular, folk, and traditional 
music of Egypt in Cairo, including research 
about Egyptian musical instruments. 

Maribel Meisel, 85 Mechanic Street, 2nd 
floor, Pawcatuck, CT 06379 is compiling an 
"International Inventory of Pre-1850 Hammel' 

Stringed Keyboard Instruments" and needs 
the assistance of AMIS members. In addition 
to being told the location of instruments which 
should be included in the inventory, she also 
needs to know what characteristics of the in­
struments should be included. Finally, sugges­
tions about funding that would help accelerate 
the progress of the inventory would be deeply 
appreciated. 

Margaret Neuhaus has written The Baroque 
Flute Fingming Book: A Comprehensive Guide 
to Fingerings for the One-Keyed Flute, In­
cluding Trills, Flattements, and Battements. 
The book is based on original sources from the 
18th and 19th centuries, and i8 available for 
$16.50 from Flute Studio Press, 846 Wellner 
Road, Naperville, IL 60540. 

Margaret D. Banks, Vermillion, South 
Dakota, will read a paper, "North Italian Ba­
roque Bowed Stringed Instruments at The 
Shrine to Music Museum," at the 3rd Inter­
national Viola d'amore Congress, July 10-12, 
1986, at the University of Texas at Austin. 
Myron Rosenblum is one of the directors of the 
Society. For information about the congress, 
write to Viola d'amore Society of America, 
39-23 47th Street, Sunnyside, NY 11104. 

Walter Hermann Sallager, Neulinggasse 
42/10, A-1030, Vienna, Austria, writes that he 
has organized a Chamber Music Club Meeting 
at the Schloss Breiteneich, a 12th-century cas­
tle near the little town of Horn in Lower 
Austria, from June 28 to July 12. Participants 
will participate in informal chamber music 
playing in a facility uniquely suited and 
equipped "for sharing unforgettable hours of 
relaxed music making." The Breiteneich 
courses held at the Schloss for 16 years will be 
held this year, July 13-August 10, at the near­
by monastery Geras. 

KURONEN APPOINTED TO 
MFA POST IN BOSTON 

Darcy J. Kuronen has been appointed Assis­
tant to the Keeper of Musical Instruments at 
the Museum of Fine Arts (MFA) in Boston, ef­
fective June 30,1986. He succeeds D. Samuel 
Quigley, who was promoted to Keeper of Mu­
sical Instruments at the MFA on January 27, 
1986. 

A native of Rapid City, South Dakota, 
Kuronen received his B.M. degree in harp­
sichord from the University of South Dakota 
(USD) at Vermillion in 1982, and will receive 
a M.M. degree with a concentration in the 
history of musical instruments from USD in 
August. His recently-completed thesis, A 
Pianoforte by Davison and Redpath, London, 
1789: Its Historical Position and Restoration 
Considerations, deals with a unique piano in 
the collections of The Shrine to Music Museum. 

While employed as a research associate at 
The Shrine to Music Museum, Kuronen was 
responsible for the installation of the perma­
nent exhibition, The Genius of North Italian 
Stringed Instrument Maldng 1540-1793. He has 
a particular interest in Baroque music, and is 
a member of the Board of Directors of the Mid­
western Historical Keyboard Society. 

ARE YOU MOVI NG? 
Are you moving? If so, please be certain that 

you notify the Society of your new address, as 
soon as possible. Write to the AMIS Member­
ship Office, c/o The Shrine to Music Museum, 
414 E. Clark Street, Vermillion, SD 57069 
USA. 
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The cover of "Philadelphia Gray's Quick 
Step," performed by Johnson's Brass Band 
and arranged by Johnson for piano before his 
death in 1844. The bugler by the flagpole may 
be a representation of the composer, himself, 
with the instrument with which he became 
famous. 

By Mayoral proclamation, January 19, 1986, 
the day before the first national observance of 
a holiday honoring Martin Luther King, was 
designated Francis Johnson Day in Philadel­
phia, Pennsylvania. An evening in honor of 
Francis Johnson (1792-1844) and his contem­
poraries, Philadelphia's early 19th-century 
black composers, was held that evening in 
Mandell Theater on the campus of Drexel Uni­
versity. Lectures by Sam Dennison and Arthur 
Labrew, musicologists, pointed to the contribu­
tions of black musicians in the Anglo-German 
society of ante-bellum Philadelphia. Labrew, 
whose biography of Johnson is available from 
the Pennsylvania Historical Society, described 
Johnson as a leader-teacher in a Group of 
Seven, writers of songs, dances, choral odes, 
and anthems. 

Following the lectures came a two-hour con­
cert of music for band and social orchestra, in­
terspersed with chorus and solo songs, all 
organized by Jay Krush and The Chestnut 
Brass Company, an ensemble-in-residence at 
Philadelphia's New School of Music. In the au­
dience were numerous AMIS members; on 
stage performing were Ralph Dudgeon and 
Franz Streitwieser, who, with other AMIS 
collectors-Mark Elrod, Robert Hazen, Fred 
Oster, and Jack Silver-had loaned more than 
half of the 29 instruments used by the 22 in­
strumentalists. Also performing were 24 
singers from the Mendelssohn Club of Phila­
delphia. Booker Rowe, one of two black solo­
ists, led the small orchestra in dance sets, play­
ing a violin fitted to early specifications, while 
standing in front of the ensemble, as Johnson, 
himself, would have done. 

Johnson's band was 'known-praised as sec­
ond only to the royal bands in England-to 
readers of many contemporary newspapers, as 

well as the Philadelphians who were repeated­
ly entertained by it. The acclaim given its 
English performances prompts Labrew to 
credit Johnson as the first American performer, 
black or white, to garner an international 
reputation. Because all of the arrangements are 
now lost, parts for the entire evening were re­
constructed by Krush, with obvious historical 
understanding enlivened by creative good 
taste, from extant piano scores, of which there' 
are many. Around a nucleus of players from 
The Chestnut Brass, he called together an 
ensemble which demonstrated just how good, 
when given to dedicated players who practice 
with equal dedication, keyed bugles, ophi­
cleides, and serpents can sound, when used for 
music written with their character in mind. The 
five-keyed bassoon by Klemm & Bro. and the 
cornopeans also showed up well. It is not a 
criticism of the clarinets that their five-keyed 
instruments came off least convincingly of all 
the instruments used. It is simply a fact, in this 
writer's opinion, that the study of performance 
on early clarinets has lagged behind that for 
all others! It is time they be given due 
attention. 

Johnson's "Philadelphia Gray's Quick Step" 
was the program finale. An avowed paraphrase 
of a theme by Donizetti, its exchange of 
phrases antiphonally between solo bugle, 
bugles and woodwinds, and then cornopeans 
and trumpets, only to have all join again in a 
tutti, was typical of the many bright spots on 
a brilliant evening's entertainment. Copies of 
the large, informative program, as well as in­
formation about a planned recording, can be 
had from The Chestnut Brass Company, P.O. 
Box 27539, Philadelphia, PA 19118. 

-Lloyd P. Farrar 

INSTRUMENTS MISSING 
Two musical instruments have been reported 

missing or stolen: 
1) a natural brass trumpet, engraved COUR­
TOIS ET MILLE/88 Rue des Marais/Paris, 
disappeared from either La Guardia Airport 01' 

in front of 544 East 86th Street, New York Ci­
ty, the night of May 11, 1986. The instrument, 
shown at the "Show and Tell" session at the 
AMIS meeting on May 9, is 19-7/8" long and 
is in the original fitted wooden case with six 
crooks. Please contact Lillian Caplin, collect, 
at 212-744-8168. 
2) a 'cello by Curt Wunderlich, Detroit, 1972, 
was stolen in Omaha, Nebraska, May 3,1986. 
The instrument is a rust-red color and was in 
a black fiberglass case with a red lining, also 
containing bows by John Norwood Lee and A. 
R. Reichel. Please contact Kim Rockshaw, col­
lect, at 313-778-9549 (permanent) 01' 

402-558-3900 (until July 25). 

BOU L TON COLLECTION 
IS AT INDIANA U 

As reported in the February 1986 issue of the 
AMIS Newsletter (Vol. XV, No.1, p. 16), the 
Laura Boulton Collection of Musical Instru­
ments has been transferred from Arizona State 
University at Tempe to Indiana University at 
Bloomington. According to Anthony Seeger, 
Director of the Archives of Traditional Music 
at Indiana University, "Dr. Boulton's in­
struments and her own magnetic tape copies 
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of her field collections (the originals of which 
are at Columbia University and the Smithso­
nian) have been donated to the Indiana Univer­
sity Archives of Traditional Music by the 
Trustees of the Laura Boulton Foundation. 
Under the terms of the agreement, the in­
struments themselves will be stored, preserved, 
and made available for scholarly research in 
Indiana University's William Hammond 
Mathers Museum, where they will join the 
Erich von Hornbostel musical instrument col­
lection, acquired in the 1950's, and other 
ethnographic instlUment collections. The Arch­
ives of Traditional Music will coordinate the 
documentation of the tape recordings and the 
instruments, and the museum staff will see to 
their conservation." 

For further information, write to the Arch­
ives of Traditional Music, Indiana University, 
Maxwell Hall 057, Bloomington, IN 47405. 

NOMINEES SOUGHT FOR 
CURT SACHS AWARD 

Nominations for the 1987 Curt Sachs A ward 
may be made, before October 1, 1986, to a 
member of the award committee, Laurence 
Libin, chairman, 126 Darlington Avenue, 
Ramsey, NJ 07446; Phillip T. Young, 958 
Royal Oak Drive, Victoria, British Columbia 
V8X 3T4, Canada; Dale Higbee, 412 S. Ellis 
Street, Salisbury, NC 28144; and, Andre P. 
Larson, ex officio. 

The Curt Sachs Award was established by 
the Board of Governors of the American 
Musical Instrument Society to honor those 
who have made important contributions 
toward the goals of the Society. 

The 1986 recipient of the award, announced 
at the May 10 banquet in Vermillion, is John 
Henry van del' Meer, Furth, West Germany. 
Previous recipients were David D. Boyden 
(1983), Sibyl Marcuse (1984), and Anthony C. 
Baines (1985). 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
APPOINTED FOR 1987 

A nominating committee for the 1987 AMIS 
election has been appointed by Andre P. Lar­
son, President. The officers and one-third of the 
other members of the Board of Governors will 
be up for election. 

Anyone wishing to recommend potential 
nominees, or to express a personal interest in 
serving, should contact one of the committee 
members. Inclusion of a vita sheet for candi­
dates is helpful. 

The committee members are the chairman, 
Frederick Crane, School of Music, University 
of Iowa, Iowa City, IA 52242; Peggy F. Baird, 
4023 Lucerne Drive, Huntsville, AL 35802; 
and, William E. Hettrick, 48-21 Glenwood 
Street, Little Neck, NY 11362. AndnJP. Lar­
son is an ex officio member. 

JEANNE LARSON DIES 
Jeanne F. Larson, Vermillion, South Dakota, 

died February 24,1986. She and her husband 
donated the Arne B. Larson Collection of 
Musical InstlUments & Library to the Univer­
sity of South Dakota in 1979 and she was a 
Founder member of The Shrine to Music 
Museum Foundation. Burial was at the Bluff 
View Cemetery in Vermillion. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN 
INSTALLS NEW ORGAN 

By Terry Gallagher 

(This article is reprinted with the permission 
of Jane R. Elgass, Editor, The University 
Record, and originally appeared in the 
September 30, 1985, issue of that publication. 
The organ was installed as part of a new addi­
tion to the School of Music at the University 
of Michigan in Ann Arbol; which also includes 
two galleries for the exhibition of a portion of 
the Stearns collection, as reported in the 
February 1986 issue of the AM IS Newsletter 
(Vol. Xv, No.1, p. 10), dedicated October 4, 
1985). 

A new mechanical-action organ, modeled 
after the 18th-century instruments on which 
Johann Sebastian Bach composed and per­
formed, will debut at an open house from 1 to 
5 p.m. this Sun. (Oct. 6) at the School of Music. 

The recital organ "is ideal for the music of 
Bach," according to University Organist 
Marilyn Mason, "and the music of Bach is the 
backbone of organ music." The instrument was 
purchased with the help of a bequest from 
Judith Barnett Metz, an Ohio organist; it was 
built by the C. B. Fisk Co. of Gloucester, 
Massachusetts. 

Prof. Mason, chairwoman of the U-M Organ 
Department, will perform music of Bach at 2, 
3, and 4 p.m. during the open house. Other 
members of the organ faculty, Profs. Michele 
Johns, James Kibbie, and Robert Glasgow, will 
continue the dedication series with perfor­
mances at 3 p.m. Oct. 13, 20, and 27. 

A mechanical-action organ differs from 
electric-pneumatic action in that it employs a 
direct mechanical linkage from the keys to the 
pallet, the spring mechanism that admits and 
closes off air to the pipes. The organist enjoys 
a greater degree of sensitivity and is better able 
to control the sound of the instrument. 

Most organs being built today have mechan­
ical action keyboards, Mason says, but the U­
M instrument is special "because it is a historic 
copy, with minor departures, of a Gottfried 
Silbermann instrument." 

Silbermann built organs in Saxony (the 
southern part of what is now East Germany) 
in the 18th century, when Bach was living and 
performing in the same area. Mason has made 
numerous trips to East Germany to see the 30 
Silbermann organs still in use. In March 1984 
she was accompanied by representatives of the 
Fisk company to consider specific design 
features that were incorporated in the new 
organ. 

"We were inspired particularly by Silber­
mann's instruments in St. George's Church in 
Rotha and in the Grosshartmansdorff village 
church," Mason says. "The Michigan organ, 
though not a slavish imitation, reflects Silber­
mann's personality." 

Mason describes the newly-constructed 
recital hall, named the Blanche Anderson 
Moore Hall, where the organ has been built, as 
a "near-perfect acoustical situation." Part of 
the Margaret Dow Towsley Center, the high­
ceilinged, long, narrow room, with undulating 
stone walls, seats 120 listeners on wooden 
pews. 

The organ is raised as high as possible at one 
end of the room, Mason points out. "Silber­
mann's organs scrape the ceiling," she reports. 
"I am thrilled with the acoustics and the 

Courtesy of U-M News Service 
The University of Michigan's new organ "scrapes the ceiling" in the fashion of Silbermann 

organs, after which it is modeled. 

Courtesy of U-M News Service 

The keyboard of the new organ, based on 18th-century instruments by Gottfried Silbermann 
and built by the C. B. Fisk Company, Gloucester, Massachusetts. 

aesthetics of this hall." 
Two bellows in a room beneath the organ, in­

flated by a person pumping on a pedal lever, 
provide the organ's wind supply. "In the days 
of Bach, you never went to practice alone; you 
had to take someone along to pump the bel­
lows," says Mason. Bach, she adds, had 20 chil­
dren. For those without Bach's family as­
sistants, the U-M organ also has a small motor 
to inflate the bellows. 

Paired like lungs, the bellows provide a 
steady stream of air to the organ's 1,816 pipes, 
giving the instrument's voice a human, breath­
ing quality, Mason says. To make the pipes 
"speak," the organist depresses keys on one 
of three divisions, two manual and one pedal, 
directing air to the appropriate pipes via the 
instrument's 27 stops. 

(The new organ and the ways in which U-M 
professors perform the music of J. S. Bach were 
subjects of the May..June 1985 issue of The Re­
search News, of which free copies may still be 
available. Write to The Research News, Univel' 
sity of Michigan, 241 West Engineering, Ann 
ArbO/; MI48109-1092. -Ed.) 

ORGAN 
OFFERS 

FOUNDATION 
CATALOG 

The Organ Literature Foundation, 45 Nor­
folk Road, Braintree, MA 02184, established 
36 years ago and perhaps the world's largest 
supplier of organ books, recordings, and so on, 
has published a new catalog which can be or­
dered from the address above. 



TRUMPET MUSEUM OPENS IN BAD SAECKINGEN 

The Schloss Schoenau, home of the Trumpet 
Museum, is located in a beautiful park in Bad 
Saeckingen, West Germany. 

Europe's first and only trumpet museum 
opened its gates in Bad Saeckingen, West Ger­
many, on October 27, 1985. Located on the 
Rhine River, Bad Saeckingen is an easy, 
20-minute drive or train ride east of Basel, 
Switzerland. The curator of the museum is the 
American trumpeter, Edward H. Tarr, who has 
lived near Basel for some time. 

The museum is housed on the second floor 
of the Trumpeter's Castle, formerly owned by 
the noble Schoenau family, a building which 
received its present appearance in the 17th cen­
tury. It is situated in the middle of a beautiful 
park. The nucleus of the museum's holdings is 
the collection of Ernst W. Buser, Binnengen, 
Switzerland, whose trumpets and trumpet­
related art works were purchased by the city 
in 1984. 

The gala address at the opening ceremony 
was delivered by John Henry van der Meer, the 
former director of the instrument collection at 
the Germanisches National Museum in Nurem­
berg, who recently received the Curt Sachs 
A ward at the AM IS meeting in Vermillion. The 
Natural Trumpet Ensemble of the Schola Can­
torum Basiliensis also performed. 

The first exhibition, consisting of the com­
plete Buser collection, ran until June 22, when 

Edward H. Tarr, curator of the Trumpet 
Museum, holds a copy of the "Mandate 
Against Unauthorized Trumpet Playing" 
which was published in Dresden in 1711. In the 
exhibit case are natural trumpets by Ignaz and 
Anton Kerner, Vienna, 1793. 

a second exhibition, devoted to Joseph Victor 
von Scheffel (1826-1886) and the "trumpeter 
of Saeckingen," which he created, opened. 
Scheffel's legend, "Der Trompeter von Sack­
ingen," was used for the libretto of a successful 
operetta by the Alsatian composer, Victor­
Ernest Nessler (1841-1890), and both legend 
and operetta are now part of German popular 
tradition. As a result, people immediately 
associate Sackingen with the trumpet, helping 
to assure the success of the Trumpet Museum 
as a popular attraction. 

Among the important instruments are 
natural trumpets by Paul Hainlein (1664) and 
Johann Graf (1746), a coiled hunting instru­
ment by J. W. Haas (1688), a keyed trumpet 
by Anton Miiller (1st half of the 19th century), 
a cornet with adjustable vertical bell by A. 
Courtois (ca. 1850), and a trumpet in saxophone 
form by F. X. Milller (ca. 1926). There are ap­
proximately 50 instruments, plus iconographic 
documents and a sound archive. Since the open­
ing, two rare books have been purchased: an 

Among the important instruments in the Buser collection is this eight-keyed trumpet by An­
ton Muller, first half of the 19th century. 
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original edition of Johann Ernst Altenburg's 
Versuch einer Anleitung zur heroisch­
musikalischen Trompeter- und Pauker-J(unst 
(Halle, 1795) and a recently-discovered 
autograph manuscript from 1688-89 which con­
tains 66 as yet unpublished trumpet duets by 
Bartolomeo Bismantova. 

Beginning July I, the Trumpet Museum will 
experiment with additional opening days: 
Sunday-Thursday, 3-5 p.m. A catalog by Ed­
ward Tarr, Die Trompeten von Siickingen: Eine 
Gesamtschau del' Sammlung von E. W. Buser, 
is available for DM 20. Write to Trompeten­
museum, Schloss, Postfach 1143, D7880 Bad 
Sackingen, West Germany. 

The Trumpet Museum is also featured in an 
article by Jean-Pi~rre Mathez, complete with 
color photographs, in the quarterly publication, 
Brass Bulletin (111986), pp. 17-27 ... 

-Andre P. Larson 

CLASSIFIED COLUMN 
Advertisements of interest to AMIS 

members may be placed in this space. Each 20 
words or less cost $5.00 per issue for AMIS 
members, $10.00 for non-members. Checks, 
made payable to AMIS, must be included with 
your copy to the Editor, AMIS Newsletter, clo 
The Shrine to Music Museum, 414 E. Clark 
Street, Vermillion, SD 57069 USA. 

FOR SALE: Gibson Mandolin, oval inlaid 
sound hole, Pat. 1896-1902. Good condition. 
Doug Douglas, Box 1302, Miles City, MT 
59301. 

1875 STEINWAY concert grand, 8'6", 
rosewood case. Case, action need work. 
$14,OOO/offer. Ms. Shortridge, 6021 Broad 
Street, Bethesda, MD 20816. 

FOR SALE: Square piano by Loud & Brothers., 
Philadelphia, mid-19th century. Original pin 
block with new strings and tuning pins, most 
of them loose; 73 notes. Pine soundboard, ap­
pears concave. Original bridge with one small 
crack. Damper pedal works. Original ivory in 
good condition, sharps painted black. Case in 
good condition. For additional information, 
contact H. Mears, Drury College, 417-865-8731, 
ext. 292. 

THE ORGAN is not a piano, nor an oboe, nor 
a gamba. For advice on the care, restoration, 
appraisal, or acquisition of this specialized in­
strument or research on its makers, contact: 
Barbara Owen, 28 Jefferson Street, Newbury­
port, MA 01950; 617-465-2068. 

ERNST ROSENKRANTZ PIANO, 1820-1828, 
Dresden, Germany. A rare, historic, beautiful 
collector's instrument. First time offered for 
sale. 805-964-4182. 

VIOLINS AND VIOLINISTS MAGAZINE -
required urgently for research purposes, com­
plete or part set. 1 am prepared to pay a fa­
vourable price. If anyone can help, please con­
tact Roger Hargrave, Grosserkamp 23, 2822 
Schwanewede I, West Germany. 

FOR APPRAISALS, research, exhibitions, ad­
vice on restoration/conservation, acquisitions, 
and help with fund raising, contact: Barbara 
Lambert, Specialist in Musical Instruments 
and Conservation, 10 Pequot Road, Wayland, 
MA 01778; 617-655-1514. 
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AMIS MEETS FEB. 6-8 
IN WILLIAMSBURG, VA; 
PAPERS DUE BY OCT. 1 

The American Musical Instrument Society 
will hold its 16th-annual meeting at Colonial 
Williamsburg in Virginia, February 6-8, 1987. 
The meeting headquarters will be at The Motor 
Lodge. 

Marianne Wurlitzer of New York City will 
coordinate arrangements for the meetings. 
William E. Hettrick, Professor of Music at 
Hofstra University in Hempstel}d, New York, 
will serve as program chairman, and Jeannine 
Abel of Franklin, Pennsylvania, will handle 
registrations. 

Proposals for papers, lecture-demonstra­
tions, panel discussions, and other presenta­
tions of interest to AMIS members are re­
quested. Typed abstracts must be received by 
the program chairman before October I, 1986, 
accompanied by a stamped, self-addressed 
envelope and a list of required audio-visual 
equipment, if any. Individual presentations 
should generally be limited to 20 minutes; if 
a longer time is needed, be certain to indicate 
the length on the abstract. 

Send your program proposals to the program 
chairman: Professor William E. Hettrick, 48-21 
Glenwood Street, Little Neck, NY 11362. 

Proposals for concerts and other supple­
mentary activities should be sent to the coor­
dinator of the meeting: Marianne Wurlitzer, 60 
Riverside Drive, New York, NY 10024. 

SUMMER ACTIVITIES 
The 2nd-annual Early Brass Festival will be 

held August 9-10, 1986, at Amherst College, 
Amherst, Massachusetts. Christopher Monk 
of England will give a presentation about the 
serpent, entitled Under the Greenwood Tree 
("Old things pass away, 'tis true, but a serpent 
was a good old note, a deep rich note was the 
serpent," Thomas Hardy, "Under the Green­
wood Tree"). There will also be performances 
by the Boston Shawm and Sackbut Ensemble 
and the New York Cornet & Sacbut Ensemble. 
Contact Eric Anderson, Conservatory of 
Music, Capital University, Columbus, OH 
43209; 614-236-6183 or 614-239-7088. 

Baroque 24, a Festival of Baroque Music, will 
be held July 17-August 3, ih Saratoga Springs 
and Greenfield Center, New York. There will 
be a forum-concert, "New Music for Early In­
struments," and a series of concerts. Write to 
Foundation for Baroque Music, RR I, Wilton 
Road, Greenfield Center, NY 12833. 

The 7th-annual Course in Baroque Music and 
Dance, organized by the Bath Summer School 
of Baroque Music, will be held at PriOl: Park 
College, Bath, England, August 10-17. Write 
to the Bath Summer School of Baroque Music, 
1 Aldred Road, London NW6, England. 

The 4th-annual Connecticut Early Music 
Festival was held June 13-29 in the 
Mystic/New London, Connecticut, area. Nine 
concerts, under the artistic direction of John 
Solum and Igor Kipnis, featured historic per­
formance practices. The instruments used were 
either antique originals or exact replicas. In­
terested in attending next year? Write to P.O. 
Box 329, New London, CT 06320. 

An International Symposium on Musical 
Acoustics, sponsored by the Catgut Acoustical 
Society, Inc., 112 Essex Avenue, Montclair, NJ 

07042, will be held July 20-23 at the Univer­
sity of Hartford, West Hartford, Connecticut. 

EDINBURGH WILL 
EXHIBIT CLARINETS 

A major exhibition, The Historic Clarinet, 
will be held August 9-30, 1986, daily from 
11:00-6:00, at the Collection of Historic Musical 
Instruments in Reid Hall at the University of 
Edinburgh. The exhibition, an official part of 
the Edinburgh International Festival, will in­
clude historic, rare, and unique clarinets 
displayed to show the development of the in­
strument and its contributions to music of all 
kinds during its history. The University's per­
manent collection of approximately 1,000 in: 
struments will also be on display. 

Associated programs will include guided 
tours, lecture-recitals, and an August 16 
seminar on clarinet technology with Edward 
Planas. Concerts by Alan Hacker (chalumeau, 
Baroque, and Classical clarinet) with the Amati 
Ensemble will be held August 10 and 12. The 
Clementi Company will perform August 11 on 
original wind and keyboard instruments. Also 
playing will be Keith Puddy, clarinet and 
basset horn, August 14-15; Nicholas Cox, 
clarinet, August 24; and Lesley Schatzberger, 
clarinet, August 30. All will use period 
instruments. 

For additional information contact Arnold 
Myers, Curator, Collection of Historic Musical 
Instruments, Reid Concert Hall, Bristo Square, 
Edinburgh EH8 9AG, Scotland. 

BE A FRIEND OF AMIS 
AMIS members who contribute $100 or more 

in excess of dues in anyone year will have his 
or her name inscribed in the AMIS Journal as 
a "Friend of the American Musical Instrument 
Society." 

Individuals who wish to join those who will 
be listed for 1986 should send their contribu­
tion to the AMIS Membership Office, c/o The 
Shrine to Music Museum, 414 E. Clark Street, 
Vermillion, SD 57069. Contributions to AMIS 
are tax-deductible, within the limits provided 
by law, and will directly support the activities 
of the Society. 

AMERICAN MUSICAL 
INSTRUMENT SOCIETY, INC. 

MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING 
VERMILLION, MAY 11, 1986 

The Annual Meeting of the American Musical Instrument 
Society, Inc. was held at Arne B. Larson Hall, Shrine to Music 
Museum, University of South Dakota, on Sunday, May II, 
1986 pursuant to notice mailed more than two weeks before 
the meeting. There were 63 members present and 97 
represented by proxy constituting a quorum. President Andre 
Larson called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. 

The President asked for corrections or additions to the 
minutes as published in the Newsletter. Since there were no 
changes, the minutes were approved as published. 

Treasurer Robert Eliason submitted a written report and 
stated briefly that our income from dues, Annual Meeting 
registrations, advertising, interest, etc. was just slightly less 
than our expenses for the Journal, Newsletter, Annual 

A NOTE FROM THE EDITOR ... 

Meeting, etc. On motion, duly seconded and carried, this report 
was approved. 

Journal Editor Martha Maas read the names of authors and 
titles of articles which will appear in the Journal for 1986 and 
made a plea for the submission of suitable articles. She stated 
that it would be desirable to submit papers before the end of 
the year for publication in the following year's issue. 

Membership Registrar -Margaret Banks submitted a writ-
. ten report and stated that our membership stays steady at 

about 600 with a gain and loss of about 40 each year. The 
President stated that membership mailings are done regular~ 
Iy but that personal contact is still the best source of new 
members. 

Marianne Wurlitzer, as Chairman of the Coordinating Com­
mittee for next year's meeting at Colonial Williamsburg, 
stated that the date will be February 6 to 8, 1987 and asked 
for suggestions and volunteers. She was asked about side trips 
from Williamsburg and replied that more information will be 
in the October Ne)vsletter. 

The President armounced that the proposed meeting with 
the Galpin Society in England in 1988 has been cancelled for 
the present because of various complications. He aaid that 
Palo Alto, San Francisco and Hawaii were under considera­
tion and that Kenneth Moore and Samuel Quigley were look­
ing into the matter: Anyone with suggestions should contact 
the foregoing at the Metropolitan Museum or the Museum 
of Fine Arts, Boston, respectively. The President asked for 
a show of hands to indicate interest or lack thereof in these 
three locations. Many were in favor of the west coast sites 
and none were against. About equal numbers were for and 
against Hawaii. 

The President stated that a meeting in New York in 1989 
with the Metropolitan .Museum as host was being considered. 

The President asked Margaret Banks and Ellen Eliason to 
serve as tellers and they distributed ballots to all who had not 
voted by proxy or who wished to withdraw their proxy and 
vote in person. The meeting proceeded while the vote was 
being tallied. 

William Hettrick spoke movingly of the late Robert Warner 
as scholar, teacher, mentor and friend. He conveyed Maretta 
Warner's good wishes to the Society. At his request everyone 
stood for a moment of silence. 

The Secretary then read a communication from Lloyd Farrar 
about the importance of providing for the continuation of 
Lyndesay Langwill's An Index of lvlusical Wind Instrument 
111akers as an invaluable tool for collectors and scholars and 
to this end moved as follows: 

"Mr. Chairman: I move that a committee be established to 
serve as liaison between AMIS and the London office for the 
revision of Langwill's Index of 111usical ll'ind Instrument 
A1akers and that this committee look toward the continuation 
of the Index after the next revision is completed and report 
back to the Board and Membership as appropriate." 

The foregoing motion was unanimously carried and the 
President appointed Farrar as Chairman of the Committee 
with Richard Abel and Lillian Caplin as members. 

Maribel Meisel, who is compiling an International Inven­
tory of Pre-1850 Hammer Stringed Keyboard Instruments, 
requested cooperation on return of data and instrument 
locator questionnaires and suggestions for funding or other 
forms of assistance. 

Laurence Libin moved that the thanks of the Society be ex­
tended to Arne B. Larson and to Margaret Banks, Jan Small, 
Joseph Johnson, Darcy and Melissa Kuronen, Linda Hansen, 
and to Program Chairman Cecil Adkins for their various ac~ 
tfvities in support of the Vermillion meeting and very special 
thanks to Andre'Larson as President and Director of The 
Shrine to Music Museum for his untiring efforts which ensured 
the success of the meeting. 

Laurence Libin announced an exhibit: "'The Flute in Private 
Collections" at the Metropolitan Museum of Art during 
August in recognition of the forthcoming meeting of the N a­
tional Flute Association in New York. There will be a catalog. 

The President armounced the following election results: 
Secretary: Robert A. Lehman 
Treasurer: Robert Eliason 
Governors (Class A 1986-88): Mary Cyr 

Laurence Libin 
Marianne Wurlitzer 

Lillian Caplin called attention to the availability of original 
and copies of articles on musical instruments from 19th~ 
century publications and invited members to let their needs 
be known. 

President Larson extended a warm invitation to all to return 
to Vermillion from time to time in the future. 

There being no further business the President declared the 
meeting adjourned at 9:45 a.m. 

Robert A. Lehman, Secretary 

The AMIS Journal publishes scholarly articles about the history, design and use of in­
struments in all cultures and from all periods. The AMIS Newsletter, on the other hand, 
is designed specifically to be a vehicle for communication between all AMIS members, 
with or without scholarly pretensions. All AMIS members are invited to submit 
materials for publication, including information about their personal activities dealing 
with musical instruments. Black and white photos of particularly interesting in­
struments are also invited. 



The Metropolitan Museum of Art 
82nd Street and Fifth Avenue 
New York, New York 10028 
(212) 879-5500 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

LOAN EXHIBITION OF HISTORIC FLUTES TO OPEN AT METROPOLITAN MUSEUM 

Exhibition dates: July 1 - August 24, 1986 
Location: The Andre Mertens Galleries for Musical Instruments 

A special display of historic flutes from private collections 

will be shown in the Metropolitan Museum's Andre Mertens Galleries 
for Musical Instruments from Tuesday, July 1 through Sunday, August 
24. The exhipition, Historic Flutes from Private Collections, 

has been organized to coincide with the annual convention of the 

National Flute Assocation (New York, August 21-24). 

Approximately sixty flutes represent fine examples of flute­

making from the sixteenth to the twentieth centuries and include 

works by important European, British, and American makers. The 

display will highlight significant innovations in design and manu­

facture revealing an unexpectedly wide range of materials, mechanical 

systems, and musical characteristics. Of particular interest 

in the exhibition will be the only Renaissance flute known to 
be in private ownership in this country and a flute believed to 
have belonged to Frederick the Great of Prussia. 

Flutes from the Museum's collection on permanent display 
in the Andre Mertens Galleries for Musical Instruments will sup­

plement the exhibition, which was organized and selected by Laurence 
Libin, curator of Musical Instruments of the Metropolitan Museum. 

(End) 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION please contact John Ross or Berenice Heller, 
Public Information Department, The Metropolitan Museum of Art. 
Tel: (212) 879-5500 
June 1986 


